REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA
April 23, 2019 – 2:00 PM
COUNCIL CHAMBERS

0.0

PUBLIC HEARING

1.0

CALL TO ORDER
1.1 Conflict of Interest Declaration: Pecuniary and Non-pecuniary

2.0

ADDITIONS TO/ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

3.0

ADOPTION OF THE MINUTES
3.1

Regular Council Meeting Minutes – April 8, 2019

4.0

BUSINESS ARISING FROM THE MINUTES

5.0

DELEGATION

6.0

BYLAWS
6.1
6.2
6.3

7.0

Mill Rate Bylaw 756-C-04-19 – K. Beauchamp
Supplementary Assessment Bylaw 755-C-04-19 – K. Beauchamp
Special Tax Recreation Bylaw 754-C-04-19 – K. Beauchamp

NEW BUSINESS
7.1
7.2
7.3

Approval for 2018 Audited Financial Statements – K. Beauchamp & Avail
LLP Green Acres Golf Tournament – L. Unger
Park Signage – C. L’Hirondelle

8.0

DEPARTMENTAL REPORTS

9.0

COUNCIL REPORTS
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10.0

CORRESPONDANCE

11.0

INFORMATION ITEMS
11.1
11.2
11.3
11.4

12.0

CLOSED MEETING
12.1

13.0

Canadian Badlands – Meeting Minutes to AGM March 15, 2019
Emergency Advisory Committee – Meeting Minutes December 13, 2018
Barons-Eureka-Warner FCSS – Board Meeting Minutes March 6, 2019
Barons-Eureka-Warner FCSS – Year in Review 2018/19

CAO Report – K. Hastings (FOIPP Sections 16, 17, 23 and 24)

ADJOURNMENT
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AGENDA ITEM #: 3.1

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES
APRIL 8, 2019 – 2:00 P.M.
COUNCIL CHAMBERS

PRESENT:
Mayor
Councillors
Administration/Staff
Recording Secretary
Media
Delegates
ITEM 074

1.0

K. Craig
B. Simpson, D. Lloyd, B. Chapman, R. Hohm, J. Abrey
K. Hastings, K. Bly, K. Beauchamp, S. Croil, C. Mills, A. Koester
L. Unger
N. Jamieson – Sunny South News
None
CALL TO ORDER

➢ Mayor Craig called the meeting to order at 2:00 p.m. Mayor Craig noted that Councillor
Pauls would be absent for the meeting.
ITEM 075

1.1

CONFLICT OF INTEREST DECLARATION

➢ Mayor Craig inquired as to whether there were any pecuniary or non-pecuniary
conflicts of interest to be declared at the meeting. None declared.
ITEM 076

2.0

ADDITIONS TO/ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA

MOTION 077.19

Councillor Lloyd moved that Council accept the April 8, 2019 Agenda
as circulated.
6-0 Carried

ITEM 077

REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING MINUTES – MARCH 25, 2019

3.1

➢ Councillor Chapman noted an amendment to the statement on item 7.3: Councillor
Chapman noted that the appeals are born at the cost to the hosting municipality.
MOTION 078.19

Councillor Chapman moved that Council accept the March 25, 2019,
Regular Council Meeting Minutes as amended.
6-0 Carried
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ITEM 078

4.1

CENSUS UPDATE – L. UNGER

MOTION 079.19

Councillor Simpson moved that Council accept the Census Update as
information.
6-0 Carried

ITEM 079

VERBAL REPORT – INVESTIGATION UPDATE REGARDING WEST NILE
AND THE BIRDS OF PREY FOUNDATION – K. HASTINGS

4.2

➢ CAO Hastings provided a verbal update, noting that the Town of Coaldale has retained
Solstice Environmental Management, out of Edmonton, to conduct an expert,
objective and thorough review of the events contributing to the bird deaths at the
Alberta Birds of Prey Center in August 2018, as well as an assessment of how best to
manage the annual threat of West Nile Virus in Coaldale and the surrounding areas in
the future.
➢ It is anticipated that the full report will be available to Council by the end of June 2019.
MOTION 080.19

Councillor Chapman moved that Council receive the verbal
investigation update as information.
6-0 Carried

ITEM 080

BORROWING BYLAW – RECREATION CENTRE 752-B-03-19
– K. BEAUCHAMP

6.1

➢ Councillor Chapman inquired about the levy, if it is a levy on the $10 fee. K. Beauchamp
responded that it is a general statement part of the bylaw and will be repaid through
the municipality recreation levy.
MOTION 081.19

Councillor Simpson moved that Council give FIRST reading to
Borrowing Bylaw 752-B-03-19 for the design and construction of a
recreation facility on municipal-owned property.
6-0 Carried

ITEM 081

RESERVE TRANSFER – K. BEAUCHAMP

7.1

➢ Councillor Lloyd inquired if this is done every year? K. Beauchamp, Director of
Corporate Services responded that this is generally done this time of year and is need
to have done before the Financial Statements can be completed.
➢ CAO Hastings added that once we have our structured Master Plan, one of the routine
discussion items will be on the future outlook of reserves and how much to allocate
based on infrastructure needs and requirements. Council Strategic Planning will take
place in October/November of each year.
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MOTION 082.19

Councillor Chapman moved that Council authorize the reserve
transfers as follows:
• From 2018 general operations to restricted reserves:
o $160,000 to the electrical / franchise fee reserve
o $25,000 to the census reserve
o $371,700 to the operating reserve
o $55,000 to the fire equipment reserve
o $123,000 to the fleet reserve
o $75,000 to the road reserve
o $45,000 to the snow removal reserve
o $25,000 to the general community facilities reserve
o $265,000 to the sewer reserve
o $1,120,000 to the NE Industrial reserve
o $50,000 to the Coaldale 100 reserve
• From the following restricted reserves to 2018 general operations:
o $35,000 from the professional fee reserve
o $58,000 from the arena reserve
o $210,000 from the storm reserve
o $20,000 from the water reserve
6-0 Carried

ITEM 082

VACANT RESIDENTIAL TAX POLICY – C. MILLS

7.2

➢ C. Mills, Economic & Community Development Manager, noted his recommendation
for clarity, that the policy be re-wrote as a bylaw.
➢ Councillor Hohm inquired about adding an exemption for original subdivision
developers? Further using the example that a developer coming in and develops a
section of land to later have an economic downturn and then the developer is unable
to sell the lots for a five-year period. Is there a way to exempt the original subdivision
developer from this policy as the policy should really only effects those that are buying
land and then sitting on it. C. Mills responded that he would check further into the
amendment and also consult legal.
➢ Councillor Chapman inquired if the assessor, would be congruent with their normal
roles, or would there be an extra fee for this service? C. Mills responded that if there
was an extra fee, it would be very minor.
➢ Councillor Chapman further inquired that the lands addressed, would be the current
lands and not the annexed lands? C. Mills responded that if the new annexed lands
met the requirements and they had been vacant, I would suggest that they meet the
criteria. Councillor Chapman requested further inquiry on this as the agreement with
the annexation properties is that we would current the current tax agreement. C. Mills
noted that this would be part of the County’s rates and would be left to the original
agreement.
➢ Councillor Simpson inquired if the property is vacant and a new owner purchases it and
wants to develop it within the year, due to the new ownership - would it revert back to
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the original tax base? C. Mills suggested that this will impact the price of a lot and the
applicable taxes.
➢ Mayor Craig noted that the consensus appears to be to draft a bylaw with the
suggested amendments and bring that back to Council for consideration before first
reading.
➢ Councillor Chapman noted support from the community on this initiative.
MOTION 083.19

Councillor Hohm moved that Council table the Vacant Residential

Tax Bylaw until administration comes back with additional
information regarding the legal ability to exclude developers
from adjusted mill rate.
5-1 Carried
Councillor Lloyd, Councillor Abrey, Councillor Simpson,
Councillor Chapman, Councillor Hohm, in favor
Mayor Craig, opposed
ITEM 083
ITEM 084

8.1
8.2

MOTION 084.19

ITEM 085

MARCH 2019 DEVELOPMENT STATISTICS – C. L’HIRONDELLE
QUARTERLY 2019 DEVELOPMENT STATISTICS, COMPARISON FOR
LAST 5 YEARS – C. L’HIRONDELLE
Councillor Simpson moved that Council receive 8.1 and 8.2, March
and Quarterly Statistics as information.
6-0 Carried

8.3

VERBAL UPDATE – NEXT COUNCIL MEETING – TUESDAY, APRIL 23,
2019 – L. UNGER

MOTION 085.19

Councillor Lloyd moved that Council receive the Council meeting
verbal update as information.
6-0 Carried

ITEM 086

VERBAL UPDATE – ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT – C. MILLS

8.4

➢ C. Mills presented a powerpoint on the current economic development of Coaldale.
➢ Councillor Hohm noted that C. Mills did a spectacular job of highlighting Coaldale at
the Southgrow annual meeting.
MOTION 086.19

Councillor Hohm moved that Council receive the Economic
Development update as information.
6-0 Carried
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ITEM 087

INFORMATION ITEMS
11.1
11.2

ALBERTA WINTER AND/OR SUMMER GAMES 2022
NATIONAL DAY OF MOURNING – APRIL 28, 2019

11.3

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT MINUTES – MARCH 26, 2019

MOTION 087.19

Councillor Chapman moved that Council receive items 11.1 to 11.3 as
information.
6-0 Carried

ITEM 088

CLOSED MEETING

12.0

MOTION 088.19

Councillor Lloyd moved that Council go into closed meeting at
2:42 p.m.

In addition to Council and the CAO, the following persons were in attendance during the closed
meeting session to provide information and/or administrative support: S. Croil, A. Koester, C.
Mills, K. Beauchamp.
MOTION 089.19

Councillor Simpson moved that Council come out of closed meeting at
5:02 p.m.

ITEM 089

LAND MATTER 1 – S. CROIL (FOIPP SECTIONS 23, 24, 25 AND 27)

12.1

MOTION 090.19

Councillor Abrey moved that Council approve the realignment of the
sanitary line right-of-way conditional upon a new right of way being
surveyed and registered at the northern most point of the lot at a cost
share of 50% Town, 50% Developer.
6-0 Carried

ITEM 090

LAND MATTER 2 – K. HASTINGS (FOIPP SECTIONS 23, 24, 25 AND 27)

12.2

MOTION 091.19

Councillor Chapman moved that Council direct administration to
proceed with the land purchase of the property under the parameters
discussed.
4-2 Carried
Councillor Lloyd, Councillor Pauls, Mayor Craig, Councillor Simpson,
Councillor Chapman, in favor
Councillor Abrey, Councillor Hohm, opposed

ITEM 091

12.3

LAND MATTER 3 – K. HASTINGS (FOIPP SECTIONS 23, 24, 25 AND 27)

MOTION 093.19

Councillor Chapman moved that Council direct administration to
proceed with the land purchase of the property under the parameters
discussed.
4-2 Carried
Councillor Lloyd, Councillor Pauls, Mayor Craig, Councillor Simpson,
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Councillor Chapman, in favor
Councillor Abrey, Councillor Hohm, opposed
ITEM 092

12.4

CAO REPORT (FOIPP SECTIONS 16, 17, 23 AND 24) – K. HASTINGS

MOTION 094.19

Councillor Hohm moved that Council receive the CAO Report for
information.
6-0 Carried

MOTION 095.19

Councillor Simpson moved that Council adjourn at 5:08 p.m.
6-0 Carried

_________________________
Kim Craig, MAYOR

_____________________________
Kalen Hastings, CAO
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AGENDA ITEM #: 6.1

Bylaw Reading
APRIL 23, 2019 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

BYLAW 756-C-04-19 - 2019 MILL RATE TAX
PURPOSE:

The purpose of the report is to present Council the 2019 Mill Rate Tax Bylaw; that
being, Bylaw 756-C-04-19.
OVERVIEW:

As highlighted in the Town’s 2019 operating budget, which was passed by Council at the
Regular Council meeting of November 26, 2018, a 0% increase to residential municipal
taxes—and a 4% increase in non-residential municipal taxes—was forecasted (taking
inflation into consideration).
Since the passing of the Town’s 2019 operating budget, the actual residential inflation
amounted to 0.82%, with a growth rate of 2.24%, when a 0% inflation rate was assumed
at the time of budget. Non-residential inflation amounted to 4.99%, with a growth rate
of 6.62%, when only a 3% rise in inflation was assumed. Because the resulting
assessment values for both residential and non-residential properties were higher than
was budgeted, decreases to the respective property tax rates need to occur to balance
the budget, otherwise unallocated surpluses will arise.
Please note that as a result of the 2019 Provincial Election, administration has been given
to understand that the 2019 provincial requisition for education will not be finalized until
the end of May, 2019 at the earliest. Estimates for the outstanding requisitions were
therefore used, keeping in line with what a number of other municipalities are doing to
keep on schedule.
A summary of the changes is noted in the table below:
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2018

2019

Mill Rate Change Percentage Change

Residential
Municipal
Education
Green Acres
FCSS
Total

8.1518
2.4537
0.1338
0.0653
10.8046

8.0227
2.5650
0.1353
0.0641
10.7870

(0.1291)
0.1113
0.0015
(0.0012)
(0.0176)

-1.58%
4.53%
1.11%
-1.91%
-0.16%

Non-Residential
Municipal
Education
Green Acres
FCSS
Total

10.6505
3.4694
0.1338
0.0653
14.3190

10.5451
3.5086
0.1353
0.0641
14.2530

(0.1054)
0.0392
0.0015
(0.0012)
(0.0660)

-0.99%
1.13%
1.11%
-1.91%
-0.46%

RECOMMENDATIONS:
1. THAT Council proceed with FIRST reading of the 2019 Property Tax Bylaw 756-C-0419; AND
2. THAT Council proceed with SECOND reading of the 2019 Property Tax Bylaw 756-C04-19; AND
3. THAT Council move to provide unanimous consent to provide THIRD reading of 2019
Property Tax Bylaw 756-C-04-19; AND
4. THAT Council proceed with THIRD and FINAL reading of the 2019 Property Tax Bylaw
756-C-04-19;

Respectfully Submitted:
Kyle Beauchamp, CPA, CA
Director of Corporate Services
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BYLAW 756-C-04-19
TOWN OF COALDALE
IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA
BEING A BYLAW OF THE TOWN OF COALDALE, IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA
TO AUTHORIZE THE LEVY OF TAX UPON ALL TAXABLE PROPERTY SHOWN ON THE PROPERTY
ASSESSMENT AND TAX ROLLS AND THE SUPPLEMENTARY PROPERTY ASSESSMENT
AND TAX ROLLS FOR THE YEAR 2019
WHEREAS Section 353 of the Municipal Government Act, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000, Chapter M‐26,
Council must pass a property tax bylaw annually authorizing the Council to impose a tax in respect of
property in the municipality to raise revenue to be used toward the payment of the expenditures and
transfers set out in the budget of the municipality, and the requisitions;
AND WHEREAS Section 369 of the Municipal Government Act, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000, Chapter
M‐26, provides that Council must pass a supplementary property tax bylaw annually to authorize the
levying of a supplementary property tax in respect for which supplementary assessments have been
made;
AND WHEREAS the Town of Coaldale has prepared and adopted detailed estimates of the municipal
revenue and expenditures as required, at the Regular Council meeting held on November 26, 2018;
AND WHEREAS the estimated municipal expenditures and transfers from all sources for the Town of
Coaldale for 2019 total $19,584,999 and $8,227,255 is to be raised by general municipal taxation;
AND WHEREAS pursuant to Section 326 of the Municipal Government Act, Revised Statutes of Alberta
2000, Chapter M‐26, The Town of Coaldale is required to levy a tax to recover the costs incurred for
matters relating to the assessment of designated industrial property and any other matters related to the
provincial assessor’s operations;
AND WHEREAS the assessed values of all taxable property in the Town of Coaldale as shown on the
assessment roll of $1,000,893,240;
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the Council of the Town of Coaldale authorize the Chief
Administrative Officer to levy upon the assessed value of all assessable property shown on the assessment
roll.
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Assessment

Mill Rate

Total Collected

Municipal Purposes
Residential / Farmland
Non-Residential
Machinery & Equipment
Annexed Residential / Farmland
Annexed Non-Residential
Total Municipal Purposes

862,755,990
113,541,850
2,321,640
21,589,730
684,030
1,000,893,240

8.0227
10.5451
4.7279
9.2213

6,921,632
1,197,310
102,074
6,308
8,227,324

Educational Purposes
Residential / Farmland
Non-Residential
GIL Provincial Property
Machinery & Equipment
Education Over/Under Levy
Total Educational Purposes

884,345,720
113,966,380
259,500
2,321,640
1,000,893,240

2.5650
3.5086
-

2,268,321
399,858
2,668,179

Green Acres Foundation

998,312,100

0.1353

135,061

Barons Eureka Warner FCSS

976,038,340

0.0641

62,516

8,943,460

0.0786

703

Designated Industrial Property
Total Tax Levy

11,093,783

1. That this Bylaw shall be cited as the “2019 Property Tax Bylaw”
2. This Bylaw comes into force on the date it is passed.
READ a FIRST time this ______ day of __________________, 2019.

________________________________
Mayor – Kim Craig

_________________________________
CAO – Kalen Hastings

Motion #_________

READ a SECOND time this ______ day of _____________________, 2019
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______________________________
Mayor – Kim Craig

_________________________________
CAO – Kalen Hastings

Motion #__________

UNANIMOUS CONSENT to hold THIRD and FINAL reading this _______ day of _____________, 2019.

_______________________________
Mayor – Kim Craig

________________________________
CAO – Kalen Hastings

Motion #__________

READ a THIRD and FINAL time this _______ day of _______________,
2019.

________________________________
Mayor – Kim Craig

________________________________
CAO – Kalen Hastings

Motion #__________
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AGENDA ITEM #: 6.2

Bylaw Reading
APRIL 23, 2019 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

BYLAW 755-C-04-19 - 2019 SUPPLEMENTARY ASSESSMENT
PURPOSE:

The following report is to present Council the 2019 Supplementary Assessment Bylaw;
Bylaw 755-C-04-19 for reading.
OVERVIEW:

A supplementary assessment is in accordance with Section 313 of the Municipal
Government Act. A supplementary assessment bylaw needs to be passed each year
before May 1st by Council.
A supplementary assessment notice shows the assessed value of any improvements that
have been completed or occupied during the current calendar and not included in the
annual tax notice.
RECOMMENDATION:
1. THAT Council proceed with first, second and third reading of the bylaw subject to
Council approval.

Respectfully Submitted:
Kyle Beauchamp, CPA, CA
Director of Corporate Services
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BYLAW 755-C-04-19
TOWN OF COALDALE
PROVINCE OF ALBERTA
BEING A BYLAW OF THE TOWN OF COALDALE IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA
TO AUTHORIZE THE SUPPLEMENTARY ASSESSMENTS FOR IMPROVEMENTS IN THE TOWN
DURING THE YEAR 2019.
WHEREAS pursuant to Section 313 of the Municipal Government Act, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000,
Chapter M‐26, Town Council may pass a Bylaw prior to May 1st each year to authorize the preparation of
supplementary assessments for improvements other than linear property with the Town;
AND WHERAS it is expedient to pass this Supplementary Assessment Bylaw to allow for the taxation of
certain improvements for the 2019 tax year;
NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Town of Coaldale in the Province of Alberta duly assembled, enacts
as follows:
1. This Bylaw shall be known as the “2019 Supplementary Assessment Bylaw”
2. The purpose of this Bylaw is provided for the supplementary assessments for all improvements in
the 2019 taxation year.
3. In this Bylaw, including this section:
a. “Act” means the Municipal Government Act (MGA), Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000,
Chapter M‐26.
b. “Assessed Person” means a person who is named on the assessment roll in accordance
with section 304 of the Act.
c. “Assessment” means a value of property determined in accordance with Part 9 of the Act
and the regulations.
d. “Assessor” means the person who has the qualifications set out in the regulations and is
appointed by Town Council to carry out the duties and responsibilities of an assessor
under this Act and includes any person to whom those duties and responsibilities are
delegated by the person.
e. “Town” means the corporation of the Town of Coaldale or the area contained within the
boundaries of the Town as the context requires.
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f.

“Improvement” means
i. a structure,
ii. anything attached or secured to a structure, that would be transferred without
special mention by a transfer or sale of a structure,
iii. a designated manufactured home, and
iv. machinery and equipment

g. “Supplementary Assessment” means the assessment made pursuant to this Bylaw, Part
9, Division 4 of the Act and regulations.
4. Subject to the provisions of section 314 of the Act, a supplementary assessment shall be prepared
in 2019 for all improvements, except linear property, for the purpose of imposing a tax in the
same year under Part 10 of the Act.
5. Subject to the provisions of section 314 of the Act, the Assessor must prepare a supplementary
assessment:
a. for machinery and equipment used in manufacturing and processing if those
improvements are completed or begin to operate in the year in which they are to be
taxed;
b. for other improvements if they are completed in, if they are occupied during all or any
part of, or if they moved into the Town during the year in which they are to be taxed;
c. reflecting the value of an improvements that has not been previously assessed, or the
increase in the value of an improvement since it was last assessed;
d. for a designated manufactured home that is moved into the municipality during the year
in which it is to be taxed, despite that the manufactured home will be taxed in the year
by another municipality;
e. in the same manner as the assessment are prepared under Part 9, Division 1 of the Act,
prorated to reflect only the number of months during which the improvements are
completed, occupied, located in the municipality or in operation, including the whole of
the first month in which the improvement was completed, was occupied, was moved into
the municipality, or began to operate.
6. A supplementary assessment roll must be prepared in accordance with section 315 of the Act.
7. A supplementary assessment notice must be prepared and sent to the Assessed Person in
accordance with section 316 of the Act.
8. This Bylaw shall take effect on the date of final passing thereof.
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READ a FIRST time this ______ day of __________________, 2019.

___________________________

___________________________

Mayor – Kim Craig

CAO – Kalen Hastings

Motion #_________

READ a SECOND time this ______ day of _____________________, 2019

___________________________

___________________________

Mayor – Kim Craig

CAO – Kalen Hastings

Motion #__________

UNANIMOUS CONSENT to hold THIRD and FINAL reading this _______ day of _____________, 2019.

____________________________

__________________________

Mayor – Kim Craig

CAO – Kalen Hastings

Motion #__________

READ a THIRD and FINAL time this _______ day of _______________,
2019.

____________________________

__________________________

Mayor – Kim Craig

CAO – Kalen Hastings

Motion #__________
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AGENDA ITEM #: 6.3

Bylaw Reading
APRIL 23, 2019 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

BYLAW 754-C-04-19 - 2019 SPECIAL TAX
PURPOSE:

The following report is to present Council the 2019 Special Tax Bylaw; Bylaw 754-C-0419 for reading.
OVERVIEW:

As identified in the 2019-2021 capital budget (as attached to this report as reference),
the design and construction of a recreation facility within Coaldale has a budgeted cost
of $10,000,000. Subject to passing of the borrowing bylaw, this would be funded through
a $10,000,000 debenture, repayable over 25 years.
The current ACFA interest rate is 3.132%. This would create an annual debenture
repayment of $579,800. This repayment would be funded through a special tax levy.
The special tax levy would apply to each developed residential parcel of land within the
municipal boundaries of the Town of Coaldale, at a rate of $120 per developed residential
parcel of land within the municipal boundaries of the Town of Coaldale.
RECOMMENDATION:
1. THAT Council proceed with reading of the 2019 Special Tax Bylaw.

Respectfully Submitted:
Kyle Beauchamp, CPA, CA
Director of Corporate Services
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BYLAW 754-C-04-19
TOWN OF COALDALE
PROVINCE OF ALBERTA
BEING A BYLAW OF THE TOWN OF COALDALE, IN THE PROVINCE OF ALBERTA,
TO PROVIDE FOR A SPECIAL TAX TO RAISE REVENUE TO PAY THE COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH
THE DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION OF A RECREATION CENTRE TO PROVIDE RECREATIONAL
SERVICES TO THE RESIDENTS OF THE TOWN OF COALDALE.
WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 382 of the Municipal Government Act, Revised Statutes of Alberta 2000,

Chapter M‐26, as amended (“MGA”), a Council may pass a special tax bylaw for the purpose of raising
revenue for a specific service or purpose, including a recreational services tax;
AND WHEREAS Council deems it appropriate to impose a special tax to raise revenue to pay the costs
associated with the design and construction of a recreation centre to provide recreational services to the
residents of the Town of Coaldale;
AND WHEREAS a special tax bylaw authorizes Council to impose the tax in respect of property in any area
of the municipality that will benefit from the specific service or purpose stated in the bylaw;
NOW THEREFORE, the Council of the Town of Coaldale in the Province of Alberta duly assembled, enacts
as follows:
1.

This bylaw is enacted for the sole purpose of raising revenue to provide for the costs of the design
and construction of a recreation centre to provide recreational services to the residents of the
Town of Coaldale.

2.

The area of the municipality which will benefit by the recreation centre referred to herein is all of
the developed residential parcels of land within the municipal boundaries of the Town of Coaldale.

3.

The estimated cost of the recreation centre is TEN MILLION ($10,000,000) DOLLARS.

4.

The rate of the special tax imposed hereby is to be based on each developed residential parcel of
land within the municipal boundaries of the Town of Coaldale, and the rate to be imposed is ONE
HUNDRED AND TWENTY ($120.00) DOLLARS per developed residential parcel of land within the
municipal boundaries of the Town of Coaldale.

5.

The total revenue generated as a result of this bylaw will be used to service the annual debt
payments borne by the Town of Coaldale as a result of the TEN MILLION ($10,000,000) DOLLAR
loan the Town of Coaldale obtained for the purpose of designing and constructing the Recreation
Centre.
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6.

Undeveloped residential parcels of land within the municipal boundaries of the Town of Coaldale
will not benefit from the recreation centre and the special tax shall not be imposed thereon.

7.

This bylaw shall take effect on the date of the final reading hereof.

READ a FIRST time this ______ day of __________________, 2019.

________________________________
Mayor – Kim Craig
Motion #_________

_________________________________
CAO – Kalen Hastings

READ a SECOND time this ______ day of _____________________, 2019

________________________________
Mayor – Kim Craig
Motion #__________

_________________________________
CAO – Kalen Hastings

UNANIMOUS CONSENT to hold THIRD and FINAL reading this _______ day of _____________, 2019.

________________________________
Mayor – Kim Craig
Motion #__________

_________________________________
CAO – Kalen Hastings

READ a THIRD and FINAL time this _______ day of _______________,
2019.

_________________________________
Mayor – Kim Craig
Motion #__________

________________________________
CAO – Kalen Hastings
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Recreation Project 1:
Construction of a Joint Multi-Use Recreation Facility and
New High School (Grades 7-12) in partnership with
Palliser Regional Schools
Project Description:
The Town of Coaldale and Palliser Regional Schools have partnered on a joint project that aims
to see the arrival of a new high school (grades 7-12) and multi-use recreational facility in Coaldale.
The two projects will be co-constructed, side by side, on the same site. While the high school, if
approved, will be funded by the Province of Alberta, the multi-use recreational facility will be funded
by the Town of Coaldale. It is envisioned that both projects will realize cost efficiencies if codesigned and co-constructed, with the possibility of a shared parking lot and a shared commercial
kitchen, being two such examples.
At its core, the indoor portion of the multi-use recreational facility will contain multi-sport surfaces
(i.e. hardwood, turf, rubber), an 8-lane upper track, as well as additional space for other activities
(to be identified and determined following a series of public engagement sessions).
On the exterior, a new regulation-sized football field will be constructed, providing additional
sportsfield capacity for the entire community.

Project budget:

•

Recreational Complex: Up to $10,000,000

•

Infrastructure Upgrades: Up to $5,000,000

•

The Town of Coaldale has dedicated 20 acres of land along
the northwest wetlands (a value of $1.5 million), as well as
$15 million in cash, to make this joint school / recreation
project a reality.
On the school end, as part of the shovel-readiness / needs
analysis process, Palliser Regional Schools’ administration,
principals and parent-council representatives, along with
representatives from Coaldale Council and administration, and
Alberta Infrastructure and Education, participated in a multiday value-management exercise that discussed various
options to address the congestion and programming limitations
facing public schools in Coaldale.
Request for provincial funding for a new high school (grades
7-12) in Coaldale will be submitted to the Province of Alberta
for funding consideration in their 2019 budget.

•
Status:

•

24
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30th Street

Build
Site

HW 3
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•
•
Timeline:

Key stakeholders

•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•

Town to rezone lands from Urban Reserve (U/R) to Institutional
/ Recreational (I/R) on or before December 10, 2019.
Town to meet with Alberta Transportation and update its Traffic
Impact Assessment (TIA) for the HWY 3 Corridor;
From November 30, 2018 to March 15, 2019 Town to conduct
a series of community and stakeholder engagement activities
to help identify and prioritize the community needs that the
multiuse recreational facility will seek to address.
Lethbridge County
Palliser Regional Schools
Alberta Infrastructure
Alberta Education
Sport/Recreation Working Group
Local user groups and organizations
Students

Multi-use recreational complex:

Funding sources

•

$10 million debenture over 25 years (at 3.5%) creates an
annual debt servicing payment of $604,064. A loan this size
assumes that no grant dollars or corporate sponsors emerge
between now and construction. In order to confirm our
partnership with Palliser so early in the decision-making
process, this relatively conservative assumption had to be
made for planning purposes.

•

A fair and pragmatic way to offset this annual debt servicing
payment is to create an annual Recreation Levy—pursuant to
Section 382(1) of the Municipal Government Act—of $10 per
month per household, for a total of $120 per year. This will be
a line item on the tax notices issued for residential properties
(excluding vacant lots).

Infrastructure components:
•

As a result of this partnership with Palliser Schools, full
intersectional upgrades will be required, per Alberta
Transportation, at the intersection of HWY 3 and 30th Street.
This includes the installation of signal lights, expanded
acceleration/deceleration lanes, and provision for nonvehicular modes of crossing. This comes at an estimated cost
of $3 million, which will be funded through the Town’s offsite
levies account.

26
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Project leads

Support cast

•

Road-widening, and the creation of standalone pedestrian
pathways along 30th Street, 18th avenue and 16th avenue, will
also be required. This comes with an additional estimated cost
of $2 million, which will come from the Town’s land sales
reserve account.

•

The extension of sanitary, water and stormwater lines into the
site of the future school / multi-use recreational facility will
result in a cost of approximately $500,000, which will be funded
through offsite levies.

•
•

Andrea Koester, Director of Infrastructure & Engineering
Spencer Croil, Director of Planning and Development

•
•

Cindy Hoffman, Manager of Community Services
Cam Mills, Manager of Economic and Community
Development
Kyle Beauchamp, Director of Corporate Services
Kalen Hastings, Chief Administrative Officer

•
•
•

Recommended level of stakeholder / community engagement:
IAP2 classification – Consult. This means that while Council
has selected a multi-use recreational facility (indoor multi-use
surface, upper level track) as the project type, the community
is invited to provide input and feedback on what, exactly, goes
into the building so that specific direction can be relayed to the
architectural consultants tasked with designing the interior and
exterior of the building.

•

The following stakeholder / community engagement strategies
are suggested:

Community /
Stakeholder
engagement

Ø Strategy 1: Online survey to gather feedback on the types
of amenities that we should explore, or attempt to
incorporate, inside the multi-use recreational facility given
a project budget of $10 million.
Ø Strategy 2: Hold focus groups at the local middle schools
and high school during lunch hours, in order to hear from
students what they think the complex should include.
Ø Strategy 3: Send a letter to the user groups in Coaldale—
be that sport/rec groups, senior’s organizations, or
fundraising / advocacy groups – and request an opportunity
to attend one of their board meetings for the purpose of
27
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brainstorming and gathering ideas.
Ø Strategy 4: Charter a bus, and invite the sport/rec working
group, along with members of Council and the user groups,
to tour the new recreational facility in Strathmore as a way
to kickstart the brainstorming process.

Construction of a Multi-Use Recreational Complex – Alignment with Strategic Plan
Strategic
Area

Priority /
Focus Area

Alignment with
Strategic Plan

Recreation and Culture:

Empower the
community by setting
the foundation (i.e. be
shovel ready) for a
large recreational
facility

The Town has set the foundation for a
large recreational facility by setting aside
$10 million and 20 acres of land while
partnering with Palliser Regional Schools
on a joint new high school / recreation
complex.

Engage the local
schools and school
boards on recreational
partnerships in order to
retain students

The Town and Palliser are in discussions
for various educational programming
partnerships, including: a future soccer
academy, public works academy, fire
academy, environmental science and
ecology course, and a municipal
internship program.

That Coaldale Build
Recreational Capacity
and Culture by
Empowering, Facilitating
Collaborating and
Leveraging Partnership
Opportunities.

Identify and explore
educational
programming
partnerships and
opportunities between
local schools and
various town
departments

Emphasis on
Developing diverse
revenue streams.
Finance:
Providing Good Value for
Money

Making strategic
investments that will
pay long term
dividends.

The citizens of Coaldale receive good
value for money when an investment as
large as a joint new high school and rec
complex stimulates additional residential
and commercial growth and development.
To this end, an economic development
assessment has been undertaken.

Explore regional
business ventures.
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Economic
Development:
Continue making
Coaldale a vibrant,
innovative and inviting
commerce center

Injecting life into
stagnated areas to
kickstart certain
elements of Coaldale’s
community/economy
Focus on recruiting new
businesses to Coaldale
Business attraction and
retention
Undertake initiatives
that set up the private
sector for long term
success

Stakeholders and
Partnerships:
To embark upon Open,
constructive and
collaborative dialogue
with all stakeholders and
partners within Coaldale
and the regional
community, and across
all levels of government.

Laying the groundwork for, and investing
in, a joint new high school and
recreational complex will serve the
economic strategic objectives of Council
because it will:
•

inject life on the north side of
Coaldale, helping make Coaldale a
complete community;

•

stimulate needed transportation,
pedestrian and infrastructure
upgrades;

•

enhance the market and appeal for
new businesses to locate to
Coaldale;

•

stimulate housing development;

•

allow Coaldale to host large
sporting events, which have
positive spinoffs for existing
enterprise.

Develop and maintain
strong municipal
relations within
Southern Alberta

With the arrival of a new high school in
Coaldale, the partnership potential
between the Town of Coaldale and
Palliser Regional Schools is endless.

Continue constructive
dialogue with the health
and education sector to
strengthen community
advocacy for these
services

Student retention will improve.
Coaldale will become a destination
location for high school education, which
will enhance the appeal of Coaldale’s real
estate market.

Collaborate with the
education sector to
identify and implement
ways to retain students
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AGENDA ITEM #: 7.1

Request for Approval
APRIL 23, 2019 REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

2018 AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
PURPOSE:

The following report is to present Council with the 2018 audited financial statements of
the Town of Coaldale.
BACKGROUND:

The MGA requires the municipality to have their annual financial statements audited by a
qualified accounting firm each year. The deadline for completion is April 30th of each year.
OVERVIEW:

Avail CPA has completed the audit of the 2018 Town of Coaldale financial statements.
Nadine Granson, CPA, CA is representing Avail CPA in presenting the unqualified audit
opinion for the 2018 financial statements.
RECOMMENDATION:
1. THAT Council approve the 2018 Town of Coaldale audited financial statements as
presented.

Respectfully Submitted:
Kyle Beauchamp, CPA, CA
Director of Corporate Services
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To:

The Mayor and Members of Council of
the Town of Coaldale

01

9

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of the Town of Coaldale which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2018, and the consolidated statements of financial activities,
change in net financial assets and cash flow for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

,2

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Town of Coaldale as at December 31, 2018, and its results of operations and its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards.

ril

17

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Town in accordance with the ethical requirements that
are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Ap

Other Matter
The consolidated financial statements of the Town of Coaldale for the year ended December 31, 2017 were
audited by another auditor who expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements on May 14, 2018.

D
ra

ft

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Town’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Town or to cease operations, or
has no realistic alternative but to do so.
Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Town’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when
it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements. As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards,
we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
3
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT, continued
Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

·

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Town’s internal control.

·

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

·

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Town’s ability to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Town to cease to continue as a
going concern.

·

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

17

,2

01

9

·

Ap

ril

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

Supplementary Accounting Principles and Standards Regulation:
In accordance with Alberta Regulation 313/2000, we confirm that the Town is in compliance with the
Supplementary Accounting Principles and Standards Regulation and note the information required
can be found in note 16.

D
ra

·

ft

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Debt Limit Regulation:
·
In accordance with Alberta Regulation 255/2000, we confirm that the Town is in compliance with the
Debt Limit Regulation. A detailed account of the Entity's debt limit can be found in note 7.

Lethbridge, Alberta
April 23, 2019

Chartered Professional Accountants
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
As at December 31, 2018
2017 Restated

2018
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and temporary investments (Note 2)

$

16,437,256

$

15,963,856

Receivables
Taxes and grants in place of taxes (Note 3)
Trade and other receivables
Land held for resale
Investments (Note 4)

540,786

513,836

2,125,643

1,277,063

3,855,780

2,356,150

1,135,798

1,112,347

24,095,263

21,223,252

1,824,956

1,546,492

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Deposit liabilities
Employee benefit obligations (Note 6)
Long-term debt (Note 7)

NET FINANCIAL ASSETS
NON-FINANCIAL ASSETS
Tangible capital assets (Schedule 2)
Inventory for consumption

R

Other assets (Note 8)

AF
T

Deferred revenue (Note 5)

$

155,604
1,797,382

312,828

286,796

4,066,414

4,357,150

9,345,671

8,143,424

14,749,592

13,079,828

96,439,632

91,333,320

1,279,609

4,862

268,620

269,958

97,987,861

91,608,140

112,737,453

$

104,687,968

D

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS (Schedule 1, Note 11)

96,290
3,045,183

Commitments & Contingencies (Note 17, 18)
Approved on behalf of Town Council:

Mayor - Kim Craig

Chief Administrative Officer - Kalen Hastings

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the year ended December 31, 2018
Budget (Note 21)

2017 Restated

2018

REVENUES
Net taxes available for municipal purposes (Note 12)

$

User fees and sale of goods and services

7,991,260

$

5,241,007

Government transfers relating to operating (Note 13)

8,187,577

$

7,503,297
5,666,678

5,578,776

669,090

792,917

870,224

-

3,362,235

1,512,933

Franchise fees

575,000

668,742

635,373

Investment income

Land development

157,800

336,003

239,534

Development levies

-

799,430

160,430

Fines and penalties

761,500

711,695

750,451

Licences, permits and fees

139,000

160,761

148,609

14,890

41,121

158,181

15,549,547

20,639,257

17,645,710

Other
EXPENSES
Administration

Policing, regulatory and emergency management
Fire
Roads, streets, walks and lighting
Storm and drainage
Water supply and distribution
Waste management
Family and community support

R

Wastewater treatment and disposal

476,106

399,061

413,236

1,459,848

1,846,404

1,323,872

2,757,382

2,276,307

2,280,947

AF
T

Legislative

935,169

816,620

695,181

3,207,378

2,903,844

3,392,085

576,600

777,039

542,132

1,456,962

1,617,023

1,624,329

1,352,463

1,370,341

962,356

1,107,044

908,113

1,098,247

85,860

85,310

83,626

1,240,433

941,436

849,166

Parks, recreation and culture

3,265,422

2,827,902

2,917,850

17,920,667

16,769,400

16,183,027

(2,371,120)

3,869,857

1,462,683

600,000

1,021,783

243,208

1,629,000

3,157,845

931,239

2,229,000

4,179,628

1,174,447

8,049,485

2,637,130

104,687,968

102,050,838

D

Land use planning, zoning and development

ANNUAL SURPLUS (DEFICIT) BEFORE OTHER
OTHER

Contributed tangible capital assets

Government transfers related to capital (Note 13)

(142,120)

ANNUAL SURPLUS (DEFICIT)

104,687,968

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, BEGINNING OF YEAR
ACCUMULATED SURPLUS, END OF YEAR

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

$

104,545,848

$

112,737,453

$

104,687,968
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
For the year ended December 31, 2018
2017 Restated

2018
NET INFLOW (OUTFLOW) OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Annual surplus

$

8,049,485

$

2,637,130

Deduct items not affecting cash:
Amortization of tangible capital assets

2,624,202

2,671,072

Net loss on disposal of tangible capital assets

-

(19,814)

Contributed assets

(243,208)

(1,021,783)

Change in non-cash items:
Receivables
Land for resale
Inventory for consumption

(875,530)

(304,597)

(1,499,630)

(2,116,363)
(8,636)

1,338

Other assets

-

(1,274,747)

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities

Employee benefit obligation
CAPITAL ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

35,765

(59,314)
1,247,801

405,124

26,032

36,132

7,523,374

3,247,565

(6,926,651)

(3,408,269)
262,958

190,864

(3,145,311)

(6,735,787)

1,495,903

-

(1,377,595)

(290,736)

118,308

(290,736)

D

Long-term debt repaid

R

Proceeds from long-term debt issued

AF
T

Deposit liabilities
Deferred revenue

182,016

278,464

496,851

220,562

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

17,076,203

16,855,641

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR

17,573,054

17,076,203

16,437,256

15,963,856

1,135,798

1,112,347

INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and temporary investments (Note 2)
Investments (Note 4)
$

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

17,573,054

$

17,076,203
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STATEMENT OF NET FINANCIAL ASSETS
For the year ended December 31, 2018
Budget (Note 21)
$

ANNUAL SURPLUS
Acquisition of tangible capital assets
Tangible capital assets received as contributions
Capital lease

(142,120)

$

Amortization of tangible capital assets
Loss on disposal of tangible capital assets

8,049,485

$

2,637,130

(5,345,627)

(6,926,651)

(3,408,269)

(600,000)

(1,021,783)

(243,208)

-

Proceeds on sale of tangible capital assets

2017 Restated

2018

8,626

-

-

190,864

262,958

2,671,072

2,671,072

2,624,202

-

-

(19,814)

(3,274,555)

(5,106,312)

(755,691)

-

(268,620)

(269,958)

Use of supplies inventory

-

269,958

261,322

Acquisition of other assets

-

Use of other assets

AF
T

Acquisition of supplies inventory

-

-

INCREASE IN NET FINANCIAL ASSETS
NET FINANCIAL ASSETS, BEGINNING OF YEAR

$

-

4,862

(8,636)

(1,273,409)

(3,416,675)

1,669,764

1,872,803

13,079,828

13,079,828

11,207,025

9,663,153

$

14,749,592

$

13,079,828

D

R

NET FINANCIAL ASSETS, END OF YEAR

-

(1,279,609)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements
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SCHEDULE OF ACCUMULATED SURPLUS
For the year ended December 31, 2018
Schedule 1
Unrestricted
Surplus

Unrestricted funds designated for future use
Restricted funds for operations

8,049,485

-

-

-

685,085

-

-

-

6,241,566

-

-

-

1,021,783

-

-

(685,085)

AF
D

BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR AS PREVIOUSLY STATED

72,462

98,588

(171,050)

-

-

2,671,072

-

(2,671,072)

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(239,613)

-

239,613

-

-

(7,334,709)

1,988,784

5,345,925

-

-

714,776

1,988,784

5,345,925

8,049,485

2,637,130

3,017,823

13,546,690

87,043,524

103,608,037

101,808,057

-

1,428,549

1,079,931

242,781

13,546,690

88,472,073

104,687,968

102,050,838

(348,618)

2,669,205

BALANCE, BEGINNING OF YEAR AS RESTATED

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

$

2,637,130

-

R

CHANGE IN ACCUMULATED SURPLUS

$

-

(1,021,783)

Long term debt repaid (capital)

8,049,485

-

(6,241,566)

Long term debt issued

$

4,418,450

Contributed tangible capital assets
Amortization expense

-

(1,843,169)

-

Disposal of tangible capital assets

$

1,843,169

Current year funds used for tangible capital assets

BALANCE, END OF YEAR

-

2017 Restated

2018

(4,418,450)

Restricted funds for tangible capital assets

PRIOR PERIOD ADJUSTMENT (Note 22)

$

T

$

ANNUAL SURPLUS

Equity in
Tangible Capital
Assets

Restricted
Surplus

3,383,981

$

15,535,474

$

93,817,998

$

112,737,453

$

104,687,968
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SCHEDULE OF TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS
For the year ended December 31, 2018
Schedule 2
December 31, 2017 Previously Reported

December 31, 2017 As Restated

Adjustments

Additions

Disposals

December 31, 2018

COST
Land

$

Land improvements

$

783,131

$

14,345,781

$

908,124

3,172,027

-

3,172,027

77,337

$

-

$

-

15,253,905
3,249,364

104,622,882

645,418

105,268,300

5,974,724

(105,209)

111,137,815

Buildings

9,775,639

-

9,775,639

112,815

(67,602)

9,820,852

Machinery and equipment

3,297,585

-

3,297,585

144,363

(306,979)

3,134,969

Vehicles

2,662,459

-

2,662,459

511,978

(97,211)

3,077,226

T

Engineered structures

13,562,650

Work in progress
137,093,242
ACCUMULATED AMORTIZATION
Land improvements

1,104,555

8,904

-

8,904

-

210,189

-

210,189

1,428,549

138,521,791

7,948,434

-

1,104,555

105,828

-

36,262,622

2,009,987

6,127,304

-

6,127,304

1,775,019

-

1,775,019

1,918,971

-

47,188,471

-

36,262,622

Buildings
Machinery and equipment

D

Vehicles

NET BOOK VALUE

-

R

Engineered structures

-

-

AF

Engineered structures
Buildings

$

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

89,904,771

$

(577,001)

145,893,224

-

1,210,383

(19,992)

38,252,617

222,849

(58,810)

6,291,343

162,920

(235,904)

1,702,035

1,918,971

169,488

(91,245)

1,997,214

47,188,471

2,671,072

(405,951)

49,453,592

91,333,320

$

96,439,632
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SCHEDULE OF SEGMENTED DISCLOSURES
For the year ended December 31, 2018
Schedule 3
General
Government

Protective
Services

Transportation
Services

Planning &
Development

Recreation &
Culture

Environmental
Services

Total

REVENUE
Net taxes available for municipal purposes (Note 12)

$

8,187,577

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

8,187,577

Sale of goods and services

54,664

604,791

15,266

10,400

473,423

4,420,232

Government transfers relating to operating (Note 13)

85,725

423,382

92,958

71,178

102,167

17,507

792,917

-

-

-

4,161,665

-

-

4,161,665

Land development

5,578,776

Franchise fees

668,742

-

-

-

-

-

668,742

Investment income

336,003

-

-

-

-

-

336,003

184,514

585,747

847

95,901

46,568

-

913,577

9,517,225

1,613,920

109,071

4,339,144

622,158

4,437,739

20,639,257

1,015,479

1,240,761

T

Other

EXPENSES
592,276

Materials, goods and utilities

407,038

Transfers to local boards

85,309

Interest and bank charges

3,435

Amortization of tangible capital assets

35,656

Other expenses

191,582

OTHER
Contributed assets

$

801,877

556,483

5,689,573

306,027

303,493

1,759,322

3,739,785

1,438,945

539,909

10,221

586,157

1,055,057

4,037,327

-

-

-

137,539

7,624

230,472

-

20,717

95,315

11,679

52,103

183,249

16,227

1,159,668

-

222,849

1,236,672

2,671,072

-

-

21,085

-

5,255

217,922

3,092,927

2,903,844

941,436

2,827,902

4,672,516

16,769,400

-

426,590

-

-

-

595,193

1,021,783

-

-

-

-

-

3,157,845

3,157,845

-

426,590

-

-

-

3,753,038

4,179,628

D

Government transfers relating to capital (Note 13)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

1,566,185

381,673

R

2,330,775

ANNUAL SURPLUS (DEFICIT)

508,788

396,994

AF

Salaries and wages
Contracted and general services

7,186,450

$

(1,052,417)

$

(2,794,773)

$

3,397,708

$

(2,205,744)

$

3,518,261

$

8,049,485
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SCHEDULE OF SEGMENTED DISCLOSURES
For the year ended December 31, 2017 - Restated
Schedule 3
General
Government

Protective
Services

Transportation
Services

Planning &
Development

Recreation &
Culture

Environmental
Services

Total

REVENUE
Net taxes available for municipal purposes (Note 12)

$

7,503,297

$

-

$

-

32,737

845,172

277,259

Government transfers relating to operating (Note 13)

12,181

397,367

-

-

Franchise fees

635,373

Investment income

239,534

Other

$

-

$

-

$

-

$

7,503,297

32,272

503,815

3,975,423

51,178

147,975

85,868

175,655

870,224

-

1,673,363

-

-

1,673,363

-

-

-

-

-

635,373

-

-

-

-

-

239,534

255,843

643,021

1,127

80,241

77,009

-

1,057,241

8,678,965

1,885,560

329,564

1,933,851

666,692

4,151,078

17,645,710

Salaries and wages

861,993

1,150,255

979,878

Contracted and general services

451,049

Materials, goods and utilities

299,443

Land development

T

Sale of goods and services

EXPENSES

79,015

Interest and bank charges

1,992

Amortization of tangible capital assets

38,473

Other expenses

88,769

OTHER
Contributed assets

569,901

5,342,674

174,487

478,748

1,339,936

3,569,050

1,376,361

485,140

11,962

451,747

944,712

3,569,365

-

-

-

173,978

-

252,993

629

28,315

66,887

9,760

247,615

355,198

32,341

1,190,464

-

235,591

1,124,900

2,621,769

-

-

383,209

-

-

471,978

2,976,128

3,392,085

849,166

2,917,850

4,227,064

16,183,027

-

-

-

-

86,387

156,821

243,208

-

142,600

-

-

99,448

689,191

931,239

-

142,600

-

-

185,835

846,012

1,174,447

D

Government transfers relating to capital (Note 13)

See accompanying notes to the financial statements

1,568,026

708,288

R

1,820,734

ANNUAL SURPLUS (DEFICIT)

212,621

416,542

AF

Transfers to local boards

$

5,666,678

6,858,231

$

(947,968)

$

(3,062,521)

$

1,084,685

$

(2,065,323)

$

770,026

$

2,637,130
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2018
The Town of Coaldale (the Town) is a municipality in the Province of Alberta, Canada and operates under the provisions of the Municipal
Government Act, R.S.A., 2000, c.M-26, as amended (MGA).

1.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the Town are prepared by management
in accordance with Canadian public sector accounting standards
(PSAS). Significant aspects of the accounting policies adopted by
the Town are as follows:

Estimates are based on the best information available at the time of
preparation of the financial statements and are reviewed annually to
reflect new information as it becomes available. Actual results could
differ from these estimates.

D. Tax Revenue
Annually, the Town bills and collects property tax revenues for
municipal purposes. Tax revenues are based on market value
assessments determined in accordance with the MGA and annually
established tax rates. Municipal tax rates are set each year by Town
Council in accordance with legislation and Town Council approved
policies to raise the tax revenue required to meet the Town's budget
requirements. Tax revenues are recorded at the time tax billings are
issued. Property assessments are subject to tax appeal. Tax
revenues are recognized net of an allowance for anticipated
uncollectable amounts. Requisitions operate as a flow through and
are excluded from the municipal revenue.

AF
T

A. Reporting Entity
The financial statements reflect the revenues, expenses, assets,
liabilities and accumulated surplus of the reporting entity. The
reporting entity is comprised of the Town operations plus all of the
organizations that are owned or controlled by the Town and are,
therefore, accountable to Town Council for the administration of
their financial affairs and resources.
The schedule of taxes levied also includes requisitions for
education, health, social and other external organizations that are
not part of the reporting entity.
The statements exclude trust assets that are administered for the
benefit of external parties. Interdepartmental and organizational
transactions and balances have been eliminated.

B. Basis of Accounting

R

The financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of
accounting. Revenues are accounted for in the period in which they
are earned and measurable. Funds from external parties and
earnings thereon restricted by agreement or legislation are
accounted for as deferred revenue until used for the purpose
specified.

D

Expenses are recognized as they are incurred and measurable
based upon receipt of the goods and services and/or the legal
obligation to pay.

C. Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements requires management to
make estimates and assumptions. These estimates affect the
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the period. Actual results could differ from management's
best estimates as additional information becomes available in the
future. Items requiring the use of significant estimates include the
useful life of tangible capital assets, rates for amortization and
estimated employee benefits.

E. Government Transfers

Government transfers are the transfer of monetary assets or
tangible capital assets from other orders of government that are not
the result of an exchange transaction and for which there is no
expectation of repayment or direct financial return to the transferor
in the future. The Town receives government transfers from the
Federal and Provincial governments to fund operating and capital
expenditures. These transfers to the Town are recognized as
revenues when the transfers are authorized and all the eligibility
criteria, if any, have been met, except when and to the extent that
the transfer gives rise to an obligation that meets the definition of a
liability for the recipient. Prior to that time, any amounts received,
along with restricted interest thereon are recorded as deferred
revenue.

Authorized transfers from the Town to other organizations or
individuals are recorded as an expense when the transfer has been
authorized and the eligibility criteria, if any, have been met by the
recipient. The majority of transfers made by the Town are in the
form of grants.

F. Land for Resale
Land for resale is recorded at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost includes amounts for land acquisition and improvements
to prepare the land for sale or servicing.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2018
G. Investments
Investments are recorded at amortized cost. Investment premiums
and discounts are amortized on the net present value basis over the
term of the respective investments. When there has been a loss in
value that is other than a temporary decline, the respective
investment is written down to recognize the loss.

iii. Leases
Leases are classified as capital or operating leases. Leases which
transfer substantially all benefits and risks to the Town incidental to
ownership of property are accounted for as capital leases. All other
leases are accounted for as operating leases and the related lease
payments, net of tenant inducements, are charged to expenses on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.

H. Non-Financial Assets
Non-financial assets are not available to discharge liabilities and are
held for use in the provision of services. They have useful lives
extending beyond the current year and are not intended for sale in
the normal course of operations.

v. Culture, Historical and Works of Art
Works of art for display are not recorded as tangible capital assets
but are disclosed.

I. Liability for Contaminated Sites
Contaminated sites are a result of contamination being introduced
into air, soil, water or sediment of a chemical, organic, radioactive
material or live organism that exceeds an environmental standard.
The liability is recorded net of any expected recoveries. A liability for
remediation of a contaminated site is recognized when a site is not
in productive use and is management's estimate of the cost of postremediation including operation, maintenance and monitoring.

AF
T

i. Tangible Capital Assets
Tangible capital assets are recorded at cost which includes all
amounts that are directly attributable to acquisition, construction,
development or betterment of the asset. The cost, less residual
value of the tangible capital assets, is amortized on a straight-line
basis over the following estimated useful lives of the assets.

iv. Inventory of Materials and Supplies
Inventory of materials and supplies are valued at the lower of
average cost and net realizable value.

Land improvements
Buildings
Machinery and equipment
Vehicles
Engineered structures

15 - 45 years
25 - 50 years
5 - 40 years
10 - 40 years
5 - 75 years

J. Equity in Tangible Capital Assets

R

Assets under construction are not amortized until the asset is
available for productive use.

K. Reserves for Future Expenditures
Certain amounts, as approved by Town Council, are designated
within accumulated surplus as reserves for future operating and
capital expenditures.

D

Tangible capital assets are written down when conditions indicate
that a tangible capital asset no longer contributes to the Town's
ability to provide goods and services, or that the value of future
economic benefits associated with the tangible capital asset is less
than its net book value.

Equity in tangible capital assets is included within accumulated
surplus. It represents the investment in tangible capital assets, after
deducting the portion financed by long-term debt.

ii. Contributed Tangible Capital Assets
Tangible capital assets acquired as contributions are recorded at
their fair value on the date received and corresponding revenues
are recorded as contributed tangible capital assets on the Statement
of Operations and Accumulated Surplus.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2018
2.

CASH AND TEMPORARY INVESTMENTS

Cash

$

Temporary investments

7,098,557
$

15,963,856

Cash on deposit earns interest at the bank's prime rate less 1.75%
(2017 - bank's prime rate less 1.75%).

INVESTMENTS

AF
T

TAXES AND GRANTS IN PLACE OF TAXES

Current taxes and grants in place of taxes
Arrears taxes and interest and penalties

R

ATB Financial non-redeemable GIC maturing on November 21, 2019,
earning interest at the rate of 2.92%
BNS non-redeemable GIC maturing on November 2, 2019, earning
interest at the rate of 2.02%

$

2018
423,933
116,853

$

2017
397,669
116,167

$

540,786

$

513,836

2017

2018
$

112,210

$

1,135,798

109,027
1,003,320

1,023,588
$

$

1,112,347

DEFERRED REVENUE

D

5.

16,437,256

2017 Restated
8,865,299

Temporary investments are capable of reasonably prompt liquidation
and may be used to manage the Town's cash position throughout the
year from the date of purchase.

Temporary investments consist of short-term deposits, at cost,
which approximates market value. These investments have
effective interest rates ranging from the bank's prime rate less
1.40% to 1.80% (2017 - bank's prime rate less 1.40% to 1.80%)
and requires 30 - 90 day notice for redemption of the investment.

4.

$

7,271,895
$

3.

2018
9,165,361

Deferred revenue is comprised of the funds noted below, the use
of which is externally restricted. These funds are recognized as
revenue in the period they are used for the purpose specified.

Interest earned on contributions is included in contributions received.
Certain deferred revenues relate to government transfers as further
described in Note 13.
Externally
Restricted
Contributions
Received

2017
Operating:
Revenue in advance of service performed and other
MSI Operating
Wetland Enhancement Program

$

Capital:
Federal Gas Tax
MSI Capital
Other

168,878
1,942
170,820

$

445,975
1,139,040
41,547
1,626,562
$

1,797,382

491,912
252,564
39,000
783,476

Revenue
Recognized
$

881,908
20,962
355,928
1,258,798
$

2,042,274

551,831
201,095
752,926

2018
$

41,547
41,547
$

794,473

108,959
53,411
39,000
201,370
1,327,883
1,160,002
355,928
2,843,813

$

3,045,183
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2018
6.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT OBLIGATIONS

Accrued vacation
Accrued wages
Banked time

$

$

7.

2018
167,736
139,841
5,251
312,828

$

$

2017
200,989
77,306
8,501
286,796

LONG-TERM DEBT

A. Debt Payable
Debt payable includes the following amounts:
Tax supported debentures
Utility supported debentures
Operating debentures

AF
T

$

$

2017

2018
2,363,274 $
258,360
1,444,780

2,582,237
279,010
1,495,903

4,066,414 $

4,357,150

Interest
173,994
160,693
146,801
132,594
118,048
628,483

Total
465,806
465,806
459,231
452,725
432,202
3,151,257

Principal and interest payments on long-term debt for the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

$

R

2019
2020
2021
2022
2023
Thereafter

D

Debenture debt is repayable to Alberta Capital Finance Authority
$2,621,634 (2017 - $2,861,247) and ATB Financial $1,444,780
(2017 - $1,495,903), bearing interest at rates ranging from 2.79%
to 6.25% and matures in annual amounts in periods 2021 through
2037. The average annual interest rate is 4.28% (2017 - 5.37%).

$

Principal
291,812
305,113
312,430
320,131
314,154
2,522,774
4,066,414

$

$

1,360,613

$

$

5,427,027

The debenture debt is issued on the credit and security of the Town at
large.
Interest on long-term debt amounted to $183,249 (2017 - $349,140)

B. Debt and Debt Service Limits
Section 276(2) of the Municipal Government Act requires that debt and debt limits as defined by Alberta Regulation 255/00 for the Town be
disclosed as follows:
2017
2018
Total debt limit per Regulation
26,468,565
$
30,958,889 $
Total debt
4,357,150
4,066,414
Percentage used (%)
16.46
13.13
Total debt service limit per Regulation
Total debt service
Percentage used (%)

$

5,159,815
465,805
9.03

$

4,411,428
465,805
10.56

The debt limit is calculated at 1.5 times revenue of the municipality (as defined in Alberta Regulation 255/00) and the debt service limit is
calculated at 0.25 times such revenue. Incurring debt beyond these limitations requires approval by the Minister of Municipal Affairs. These
thresholds are guidelines used by Alberta Municipal Affairs to identify municipalities that could be at financial risk if further debt is acquired.
The calculation taken alone does not represent the financial stability of the municipality. Rather, the financial statements must be interpreted
as a whole.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2018
8.

OTHER ASSETS
2017

2018
Deposits:
Vehicles
Buildings
Other
Prepaid expenses - operational

9.

1,218,746
30,000
7,142
23,721

$

4,862

$

1,279,609

$

4,862

EQUITY IN TANGIBLE CAPITAL ASSETS

Tangible capital assets (Schedule 2)
Accumulated amortization (Schedule 2)
Long-term debt (Note 7)

$

AF
T

10.

$

$

2017 Restated
2018
145,893,224 $ 138,521,791
(47,188,471)
(49,453,592)
(2,861,247)
(2,621,634)
93,817,998

$

88,472,073

TRUSTS UNDER ADMINISTRATION

$

88,516

$

3,383,981

$

35,154

ACCUMULATED SURPLUS

D

11.

R

The Town acts as a trustee for a number of third parties, holding assets comprised of cash and temporary investments, and administering
them on their behalf. Amounts held in trust at year-end are as follows:
2017 Restated
2018
Friends of the Arena:
Local community groups
7,848
$
59,216 $
Town of Coaldale portion
3,909
29,300
Communities in Bloom
23,397
-

Accumulated surplus consists of restricted and unrestricted amounts and equity in tangible capital assets.
General government operations
Restricted surplus:
Tax rate stabilization
Reserves for future expenditures
Equity in tangible capital assets (Note 9)

2017 Restated

2018
$

4,941,504
8,605,186
88,472,073

560,590
14,974,884
93,817,998
$

112,737,453

2,669,205

$

104,687,968
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2018
12.

NET TAXES AVAILABLE FOR MUNICIPAL PURPOSES
Budget

Taxes:
Real property taxes
Linear property taxes
Revenue in lieu of taxes

$

Less taxes on behalf of:
Alberta School Foundation Fund
Holy Spirit Roman Catholic Separate Regional District
Green Acres Foundation

Net taxes available for municipal purposes

13.

10,365,127
118,749
36,985
10,520,861

$

2,091,552
312,531
125,518
2,529,601
$

7,991,260

10,578,176
115,206
36,985
10,730,367

$

1,951,834
271,999
108,971
2,332,804

2,122,925
294,971
124,894
2,542,790
$

8,187,577

9,692,147
108,678
35,276
9,836,101

$

7,503,297

GOVERNMENT TRANSFERS

AF
T

Budget

Operating transfers:
Federal
Provincial
Other Local Governments

$

Capital transfers:
Federal
Provincial

16,267
617,623
35,200
669,090

R

$

2,298,090

2017 Restated

2018
$

1,629,000
1,629,000

Total Government Transfers

14.

2017

2018

6,878
699,752
86,287
792,917

$

931,239
931,239

3,157,845
3,157,845
$

3,950,762

5,122
829,838
35,264
870,224

$

1,801,463

LOCAL AUTHORITIES PENSION PLAN
Total current service contributions by the Town to the LAPP in 2018
were $373,584 (2017 - $371,354) and by the employees to the LAPP in
2018 were $341,177 (2017 - $341,474).

The Town is required to make current service contributions to the
Plan of 10.39% of pensionable payroll up to the yearly maximum
pensionable earnings (YMPE) and 14.84% thereafter. Employees
of the Town are required to make current service contributions of
9.39% of pensionable salary up to YMPE and 13.84% thereafter.
Contributions for current service are recorded as expenses in the
year in which they become due.

The LAPP reported a surplus for the overall plan as at December 31,
2017 of $4,835,515. Information as at December 31, 2018 was not
available at the time of preparing these financial statements.

D

All employees of the Town are members of the Local Authorities
Pension Plan (LAPP), which is one of the multi-employer plans
covered by the Public Sector Pension Plans Act of Alberta.

15.

LIABILITY FOR CONTAMINATED SITES

The Town has adopted PS3260 Liability for Contaminated Sites. The Town did not identify any financial liabilities in 2018 (2017 - nil) as a
result of this standard.

Town of Coaldale | 18.

PAGE 20 OF 23

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2018
16.

EXECUTIVE SALARIES AND BENEFITS

The following executive salaries and benefits are disclosed as required under the Supplementary Accounting Principles and Standards
Regulation (AR 313/2000) of the MGA.
Salaries
Benefits
2017
2018
Mayor:
Craig
$
35,934 $
5,389 $
40,157
41,323 $

Chief Administrative Officer
Designated Officers (3), (2017 - 2)
Total Government Transfers

$

D

COMMITMENTS

R

Salary includes regular base pay, bonuses, overtime, lump sum
payments, gross honoraria and any other direct cash
remuneration.

17.

The Town entered into a Municipal Police Service Agreement with
the Government of Canada for the Royal Canadian Mounted
Police to provide policing services until March 31, 2032. The
agreement may be terminated on March 31 in any year by either
party giving 24 months notice prior to the date of the intended
termination. As part of the agreement, the Town will pay 100% of
the cost of providing the service. The total annual cost for 2019
under the terms of the agreement are estimated to be $1,325,000.
The Town entered into an agreement with Benchmark
Assessment Consultants Inc. for the supply of assessment
services of all lands and premises within the Town's boundaries
for taxation purposes until December 31, 2021. The total annual
cost for 2019 under the terms of the agreement are estimated to
be $98,000.

18.

21,048
21,978
21,048
21,204
21,249
22,448
128,975

4,652
915
4,652
2,564
1,545
4,721
19,049

25,700
22,893
25,700
23,768
22,794
27,169
148,024

26,766
23,936
26,766
5,161
4,980
5,354
18,069
21,470
19,540
152,042

178,367
329,568

12,704
69,489

191,071
399,057

191,657
312,112

AF
T

Councillors:
Abrey
Chapman
Hohm
Lloyd
Pauls
Simpson
Duda
Martens
Van Rijn

672,844

$

106,631

$

779,475

$

695,968

Benefits include the Town's share of all benefits and contributions
made on behalf of executives, including retirement contributions,
Canada Pension Plan, Employment Insurance, dental coverage,
medical coverage, group life insurance, short-term disability insurance
and transportation allowances.

The Town contracts with the Lethbridge Regional Water Services
Commission to supply water to the Town until January 30, 2030. The
related agreement may be terminated at any time provided 12 months
notice is given. The total annual cost for 2019 under the terms of the
agreement are estimated to be $750,000 for the supply of water and
$33,000 for operating, maintenance and capital costs.
The Town contracts with Collective Waste Solutions Inc. to provide
solid waste, composting and recycling collection services until
September 30, 2019. The related agreement may be terminated at any
time by either party, provided 20 weeks notice is given.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Town is a member of the Alberta Municipal Insurance Exchange ("MUNIX"). Under the terms of the membership, the Town could become
liable for its proportionate share of any claim losses in excess of the funds held by the exchange. Any liability incurred would be accounted for
as a current transaction in the year the losses are determined.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2018
19.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

The Town's financial instruments consist of cash and temporary
investments, trade and other receivables, investments, accounts
payable and accrued liabilities, deposit liabilities and long-term
debt. It is management's opinion that the Town is not exposed to
significant interest, currency or credit risk arising from these
financial instruments. Unless otherwise noted, the carrying value
of the financial instrument approximates fair value.

20.

SEGMENT DISCLOSURES
C. Transportation Services
Transportation Services includes roads, bridges, sidewalks and
extended shoulders for pedestrian and bike travel.
D. Planning & Development
Planning & Development is comprised of engineering services, land
development and municipal use property activities. Land development
includes the Town's role as a land developer in the areas of acquisition,
development and land sales activities. Municipal use property involves
the acquisition of land for municipal purposes and the disposal of land
deemed surplus to municipal needs.

AF
T

The Schedule of Segment Disclosures - Schedule 3 has been
prepared in accordance with PS2700 Segment Disclosures .
Segment disclosures are intended to enable users to better
understand the government reporting entity as well as the major
expense and revenue activities of the Town. For each reported
segment, revenues and expenses represent amounts directly or
reasonably attributable to the segment.
The segments have been selected based on a presentation
similar to that adopted for the municipal financial planning and
budget processes.
Segments include:

R

A. General Government
General Government consists of Council & other legislative
administration, corporate administration and general municipal
services. Revenues and expenses that are not directly attributed
to another segment are also recorded within this segment.

E. Recreation & Culture
Recreation & Culture includes parks and recreation, community and
family services, recreation programs and facilities. Also included is the
Coaldale Public Library, which is managed by a separate board.
F. Environmental Services
Environmental Services provides drinking water, resource recovery,
storm water, solid waste collection and disposal, sanitary sewer and
wastewater treatment for the Town.

D

B. Protective Services
Protective Services is comprised of police, traffic safety, bylaw
enforcement, emergency management and fire rescue.

21.

The Town is subject to credit risk with respect to taxes and grants in
place of taxes and trade and other receivables. Credit risk arises from
the possibility that taxpayers and entities to which the Town provides
services may experience financial difficulty and be unable to fulfill their
obligations. The large number and diversity of taxpayers and customers
minimizes the credit risk.

BUDGET

Budgeted information was prepared under the modified accrual method. This note provides a reconciliation between the approved budget
figures disclosed in the financial statements. The budget surplus was adopted by Council on March 26, 2018.
Annual surplus (deficit)
Add:
Transfers from reserves to operations
Transfers to capital projects from reserves
Amortization expense
Debenture for capital projects
Less:
Capital expenditures
Principal debt repayments
Transfer from operations to reserves

$

Approved budget surplus

$

(142,120)
1,955,315
2,710,627
2,671,072
1,006,000
(5,945,627)
(335,715)
(1,919,450)
102

Town of Coaldale | 20.

PAGE 22 OF 23

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended December 31, 2018
22.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Town has retrospectively adjusted certain financial statement
accounts as at and for the year ended December 31, 2017 due to
the following:

During the year, the Town also identified tangible capital assets related
to land and engineered structures (storm) that should have been
recorded effective December 31, 2017. This resulted in a $846,012
increase in tangible capital assets, a $156,821 in contributed revenue
and a $689,191 increase in government transfers related to capital
effective December 31, 2017.

During the year, the Town reviewed its inventory listing identified
several items within the operational inventory that should have
been accrued as inventory for the year ended December 31, 2017
and 2016. This resulted in a $242,781 increase in accumulated
surplus and inventory for consumption effective January 1, 2017,
a $219,718 increase in inventory for consumption and a $22,063
increased in expenses effective December 31, 2017.

Certain 2017 comparative figures have also been reclassified to
conform to the current year's presentation of the financial statements.

December 31, 2017
(Previously reported)

AF
T

Statement of Financial Position
Financial Assets
Liabilities
Net Financial Assets

Adjustments

$

Non-financial Assets

19,105,924
8,193,674
10,912,250

$

92,695,787

Accumulated Surplus

R

Statement of Operations and Accumulated Surplus
Revenue
Expenses
Other
Annual Surplus

103,608,037

$

$

17,866,755
16,395,209
328,434
1,799,980

$

101,808,057
103,608,037

$

1,079,931

(221,045)
(212,182)
846,013
837,150

242,781
1,079,931

21,223,252
8,143,424
13,079,828
91,608,140

(1,087,647)

$

$

$

$

104,687,968

$

17,645,710
16,183,027
1,174,447
2,637,130

$

102,050,838
104,687,968

D

Accumulated Surplus, beginning of year
Accumulated Surplus, end of year

2,117,328
(50,250)
2,167,578

December 31, 2017
(As adjusted)

The adjusted amounts relate solely to the accounting for inventory, tangible capital assets, contributed revenue and capital government
transfers and have no effect on cash balances, property tax revenues or any other balances influencing the Town's capital and operating
budget requirements.

23.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent to year end the Town of Coaldale entered into an agreement with Southwest Design and Construction Ltd. for construction and
renovation of the Coaldale and District Emergency Services Fire Hall. Work on the project commenced February 2019. The total value of the
contract is estimated at $4,166,652.

24.

APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Council and Management have approved these financial statements on April 23, 2019.
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AGENDA ITEM #: 7.2

Request for Decision
APRIL 23, 2019, REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

GREEN ACRES GOLF TOURNAMNET
PURPOSE:

The following report is to determine if Council would like to participate as a team sponsor
in the 22nd Annual Joel Nicolaas Arnoldussen Memorial Golf Tournament in support of the
Green Acres Foundation.
BACKGROUND:

Last year Council approved sponsorship of $680 for a team of four golfers to participate
in the tournament. The Council members that signed up for this event were: Mayor Craig,
Councillor Chapman, and Administrative personnel: Cam Mills and Lana Unger.
OVERVIEW:

The tournament is on Friday, August 16, 2019, at Paradise Canyon Golf Resort. Each
green fee includes 18 holes of golf, shared cart, dinner and prizes. Mulligans, 50/50, and
raffle prizes available.
PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT:

n/a
RECOMMENDATION:
1. THAT Council receive the report as information.
OR
2. THAT Council sponsor a four-member golf team in the 22nd Annual Joel Nicolaas
Arnoldussen Memorial Golf Tournament in support of the Green Acres Foundation at a
cost of $720.00. The designated four-members will need to be determined by July 26,
2019.
Respectfully Submitted:
Lana Unger
Legislative Coordinator
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AGENDA ITEM #: 7.3

Request for Decision
APRIL 23, 2019 - REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING

PARK NAMING AND SIGNAGE
PURPOSE:

The purpose of the following report is to provide Council with the naming options for the
four (4) remaining green spaces in the town to receive park identification signs.
BACKGROUND:

In 2018, park identification signs were installed in the green spaces within the town that
currently had names to help residents identify the spaces. There were four (4) green
spaces that did not have specific names so the public was engaged to help name them.
OVERVIEW:
Below are the four (4) parks without park identification signs and the naming options:
The pocket park located to the north of the library:
1. Literacy Lane
2. Book Mark
Dog Park
1. Bark Park
2. Scentral Park
3. Doo Drop Inn
Parkside Park
1. Parkside Park
2. Prairie Pond Park
3. Bird Haven Park
Westgate Park
1. Westgate Park
2. Best Park
3. Pleasentville Park
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PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT:

Advertisements were put out on social media and in the monthly newsletter for all the
spaces requiring names. Specifically, for the library park, a board was set up in the library
for its patrons to write down their ideas for names.
For the Parkside and Westgate parks, post cards were mailed out to each residence in
those subdivisions asking to help us name their park.
NEXT STEPS:

Cottonwood Stormwater Pond and Malloy Phase 2a constructed wetlands and associated
conveyance and catchment infrastructure north and south of Highway 3 have yet to be
named. Does Council wish for a community contest to be held to name these
spaces or would the preference be to use a different approach to name these
spaces?

RECOMMENDATION:
1. THAT Council choose the desired name for each of the four (4) parks located in
the town.
Respectfully Submitted:
Cindy L’Hirondelle,
Manager of Development & Environmental Services
This report has been prepared in consultation with the following listed departments:
Department
Spencer Croil, Director of Planning &
Community Development

Signature
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AGENDA ITEM #: 11.1

CANADIAN BADLANDS LTD.
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING OF SHAREHOLDERS
HELD AT THE MEDICINE HAT LODGE, MEDICINE HAT, ALBERTA
MARCH 15, 2018, AT THE HOUR OF 12:30 p.m.
PRESENT:
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

MD of Acadia No. 34, by its authorized representatives:
Lorraine Kuhn (President, Prairie Elevator Society), as proxy for Aaron Skappak
(Councillor)
Village of Beiseker, by its authorized representatives:
Warren Wise (Deputy Mayor), and proxy for Al Henuset (Mayor)
Town of Bow Island, by its authorized representatives:
Bernice Deleenheer (Councillor)
City of Brooks, by its authorized representatives:
Dan Klein (Councillor)
Town of Castor, by its authorized representatives:
Carol Thomson (Economic Development Officer, Paintearth County), proxy for Richard
Elhard (Mayor), Brenda Wismer (Councillor), and Trudy Kilner (Councillor)
Town of Coaldale, by its authorized representatives:
Bill Chapman (Councillor)
Town of Coronation,by its authorized representatives:
Shelley Cook (Deputy Mayor)
Cypress County, by its authorized representatives:
Ernest Mudie (Councillor)
Alf Belyea (Councillor)
Village of Duchess, by its authorized representatives:
Ryan Kiedrowski (Councillor)
Village of Empress, by its authorized representatives:
Debbie Ross (CAO)
Village of Foremost, by its authorized representatives:
Tyson Ormann (Councillor)
County of Forty Mile No. 8, by its authorized representatives:
Stacey Barrows (Councillor)
Town of Hanna, by its authorized representatives:
Sandra Beaudoin (Councillor)
Kneehill County, by its authorized representatives:
Faye McGhee (Councillor), and proxy for Kenneth King (Councillor), and proxy for Jim
Hugo (Councillor)
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•
•
•
•
•
•

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

City of Lethbridge, by its authorized representatives:
William Slenders (Executive Director, Lethbridge DMO), and proxy for Jeff Carlson
(Councillor), and proxy for Lorna Kurio (Real Estate & Economic Customer Liaison)
Village of Linden, by its authorized representatives:
Sonia Ens (Councillor)
Town of Magrath, by its authorized representatives:
Fernando Morales Llan (Councillor), and proxy for DeVar Dahl (Councillor)
City of Medicine Hat, by its authorized representatives:
Brian Varga (Councillor)
Town of Milk River, by its authorized representatives:
Suzanne Liebelt (Councillor)
County of Newell, by its authorized representatives:
Molly Douglass (Reeve)
Ellen Unruh (Councillor)
Anne Marie Philipsen (Councillor)
County of Paintearth No. 18, by its authorized representatives:
George Glazier (Councillor)
Diane Elliott (Councillor)
Town of Raymond, by its authorized representatives:
Ralph Price (Councillor)
Kurtis Pratt as proxy for Jim Depew (Mayor)
Town of Redcliff, by its authorized representatives:
Chris Czember (Councillor)
Village of Rockyford, by its authorized representatives:
Dalia Cheshire (Councillor)
Village of Rosemary, by its authorized representatives:
Yoko Fujimoto (Councillor), as proxy for Bill Marshall (Mayor)
Special Areas #2, by its authorized representatives:
Brad Slorstad (Advisory Council)
Special Areas #3, by its authorized representatives:
Kevin Wilson (Advisory Council)
Special Areas #4, by its authorized representatives:
Wanda Diakow (Economic Development Officer, Special Areas #4), as proxy for Graham
Schetzsle (Advisory Council)
Town of Stettler, by its authorized representatives:
Stacey Benjamin (Executive Director, Stettler Board of Trade & Community
Development)
Village of Stirling, by its authorized representatives:
Larry Nilsson (Councillor)
MD of Taber, by its authorized representatives:
Jennifer Crowson (Councillor)
Town of Taber, by its authorized representatives:
Mark Garner (Councillor), and proxy for Andrew Malcolm (Director of Planning &
Economic Development)
Town of Three Hills, by its authorized representatives:
John Hamm (Councillor)
Jacqueline Buchanan (Economic Development Officer)
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•
•
•
•
•

•

Town of Trochu, by its authorized representatives:
Bill Cunningham (Councillor)
Town of Vulcan, by its authorized representatives:
Laura Thomas (Councillor)
Michelle Roddy (Councillor)
Warner County No. 5, by its authorized representatives:
David Cody (Councillor)
Village of Warner, by its authorized representatives:
Eric Burns (Councillor)
Wheatland County, by its authorized representatives:
Glenn Koester (Reeve)
Jason Wilson (Councillor)
Canadian Badlands Ltd.
Lonna Hoggan, Administrative Manager
Diana Watson, Executive Assistant

ABSENT:
Village of Acme
Village of Arrowwood
Village of Big Valley
Village of Carbon
Town of Cardston
Village of Cereal
Village of Consort
Village of Coutts
Village of Delia
Village of Donalda
Town of Drumheller
Village of Halkirk
Village of Hussar
Town of Irricana
Village of Milo
Town of Oyen
Village of Standard
Starland County
Town of Strathmore
Town of Vauxhall
Vulcan County
Village of Youngstown
Welcome from the Canadian Badlands Ltd. Chair, Brian Varga
1. Call to Order – Brian Varga, Chair
Brian Varga called the meeting to order at 12:35 p.m. and welcomed those in attendance.
Canadian Badlands Ltd. Annual General Meeting Minutes for March 15, 2018
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Brian Varga asked Canadian Badlands administration if quorum had been established.
Administrative Manager, Lonna Hoggan, confirmed quorum with 38 out of 60
shareholders represented (63%).
1.1.

Approval of the Agenda

Amendments to the Agenda:
Item 3.1 to be corrected to Vice President, Brian Varga
Item 3.2 to be removed
Item 6.1 should read “One from North Central Region, one from Southwest Region, and
one from Southeast Region”
MOTION by Dalia Cheshire, Village of Rockyford, to approve the March 15, 2018
AGM Agenda as amended.
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
1.2.

Approval of the Annual General Meeting Minutes for 2017

Amendments to the 2017 Annual General Meeting Minutes:
Town of Bow Island was present, Bernice DeLeenheer (Councillor)
MOTION by Bill Chapman, Town of Coaldale, to approve the Minutes of the March
16, 2017 AGM with revisions to the attendance list, held in Brooks, Alberta.
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
2. Welcome and Greetings
Greetings and welcome were given
3. Reports
3.1

Report from Canadian Badlands Ltd. Vice President – Brian Varga

Brian Varga gave a report on 2017
4. Review and Approval of Review Engagement Report for 2017
The Management Report and financials were presented by Tyler Mossey, CA
The managerial report is considered accurate
Canadian Badlands Ltd. Annual General Meeting Minutes for March 15, 2018

4
PAGE 4 OF 8

Questions were offered, none were forthcoming
MOTION by George Glazier, County of Paintearth, to approve the Review
Engagement Report for 2017.
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
5. Articles of Association - Revisions
First item: Page 4
8. Levy ~ Appendix 2
1. Change to: Each Shareholder shall pay an Annual Membership Fee and any
Annual Membership Fee increases as set by the Canadian Badlands Ltd.
Board of Directors
2. Delete this item completely
MOTION by Anne Marie Philipsen, County of Newell, to approve the above changes
to the current Articles of Association, and to remove the term “Levy” from
the document to be replaced with “Annual Membership Fee”.
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
Second item: Page 11
26. Voting and Procedures
1. (second sentence) Change to: Each of the three (3) representatives or proxies
appointed by the Shareholder shall be entitled to exercise his/her vote
MOTION by Molly Douglas, County of Newell, to approve the above changes to the
current Articles of Association.
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
Third item: Page 13
31. (a) (i) A. each Shareholder representative shall have one (1) vote
I. Delete this item completely
II. Delete this item completely
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MOTION by Bill Cunningham, Town of Trochu, to approve the above changes to
the current Articles of Association.
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
6. Elections
6.1.

Elections for Term Positions on the Board of Directors
Three term positions – One from North Central Region, one from
Southwest Region, and one from Southeast Region

NORTH CENTRAL REGION
NOMINATIONS
Stacey Benjamin, Executive Director, Stettler Board of Trade, Town of Stettler,
nominates:
Councillor Al Campbell, Town of Stettler
Reeve Glenn Koester, Wheatland County, nominates:
Councillor Donna Biggar, Wheatland County
Councillor George Glazier, County of Paintearth, nominates:
Councillor Sonia Ens, Village of Linden
Jacqueline Buchanan, EDO, Town of Three Hills, nominates:
Councillor Faye McGhee, Kneehill County
Councillor Jason Wilson, Wheatland County, nominates:
Mayor Pat Fule, Town of Strathmore
MOTION by John Hamm, Town of Three Hills, that nominations cease.
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
First vote count for North Central Region was tied.
Final vote count for North Central Region:
Councillor Sonia Ens, Village of Linden for a four-year term.
SOUTHEASTERN REGION
NOMINATIONS
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Councillor Dan Klein, City of Brooks, nominates:
Councillor John Petrie, City of Brooks
Debbie Ross, CAO, Village of Empress, nominates:
Brad Slorstad, Advisory Council, Special Areas #2
MOTION by Dan Klein, City of Brooks, that nominations cease.
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
Final vote count for Southeastern Region:
Brad Slorstad, Advisory Council, Special Areas #2 for a four-year term.
SOUTHWESTERN REGION
NOMINATIONS
Councillor David Cody, Warner County No. 5, nominates:
Councillor Bill Chapman, Town of Coaldale
Councillor Mark Garner, Town of Taber, nominates:
Councillor Fernando Morales Llan, Town of Magrath
MOTION by Molly Douglas, County of Newell, that nominations cease.
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
Final vote count for Southwestern Region:
Councillor Fernando Morales Llan, Town of Magrath for a four-year term.
7. Conclusion
7.1

Thank you

7.2

Announcement and Invitation to 2019 AGM and Conference in
Lethbridge, Alberta

8. Adjournment
MOTION by David Cody, Warner County No. 5, to adjourn the meeting.
CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY
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9. Open Mic
Brian Varga declared that the meeting adjourned at 1:47 p.m.
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Year in Review
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Strengthening families in rural Alberta!

2018/2019
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PARENT LINK CENTRE
EARLY CHILDHOOD DEVELOPMENT
Parent–child relationships are enhanced when families have positive experiences working or playing together. Our
programs provide children with a range of interactive, play-based problem-solving experiences that help develop
their readiness to learn and ensure they start school “equipped for success.”

Children 0 - 5 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 7625
Children 6 - 17  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 578
Parents/Caregivers .  .  .  .  .  . 1623

“Stay & Play is a great place to come
for social and exploration experience
during the winter.” – Parent

PARENT EDUCATION
Parent education programs help “to build parents’ skills and confidence in providing a nurturing
environment for their children.” * They address the needs of all types of parents, regardless of family
structure, composition or socio-economic background.

Children 0 - 5 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2334
Children 6 - 17  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 145
Parents/Caregivers .  .  .  .  .  . 1406

“Something I have taken away from this course is relaxation techniques to
use for bedtime. I feel like it has helped us bond even more. I have really
enjoyed this course.” – Parent
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“This program was a nice way to learn how to communicate with my baby more and was a great
space for him to socialize with other babies his age. I also greatly enjoyed the instructor and the
way she interacted with the group and the babies, so it was comfortable and feels like a safe space
to ask questions and also for the moms to interact and share. Thank you!” – Parent, Baby & Me

“This program is a necessity for the community. It’s helpful for parents of babies of all ages.
The variety of presenters provided a lot of helpful information, as well as taught participants
of all of the resources available in and around the community for families to access. It’s a
great way to connect with other parents.” – Preschool Parent Program (PPP) Participant

FAMILY SUPPORT
Family support services are intended to be preventive measures designed “to help parents
identify and develop their strengths…and be active, involved, concerned directors
of their families’ lives and their children’s development.”
* Family support services may include a range of social, educational
and recreational programs and activities.

Children 0 - 5 .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 302
Children 6 - 17  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 496
Parents/Caregivers .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 202

“Lots of fun. I really like that there is
always something for the very little
children as well as the older ones.” – Parent
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TRIPLE P (Positive Parenting Program)
WHAT IS TRIPLE P? Triple P is a parenting program, but it doesn’t tell you how to be a parent. It’s more like a toolbox of ideas.
You choose the strategies you need. You choose the way you want to use them. It’s all about making Triple P work for you.
·
·
·
·
·

Encourage positive behaviour
Raise happy, confident children
Manage misbehaviour
Take care of yourself as a parent
Feel confident you’re doing the right thing

52

33

parents participated in Triple P
seminars throughout the year.

families participated in Triple P parent education sessions.

AGES & STAGES
The Ages & Stages Questionnaires® is a developmental screening tool
designed to measure progress in children between the ages of one month to 5 ½ years.

178

parents completed the ASQ
screening tool with their
children.

121

parents completed the ASQ-Social-Emotional
screening tool with their children.
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F C SS O U TCO M E S

Parents were asked about their experience after attending a FCSS parenting program:

✓

I am more aware of how my child’s needs change as he/she grows and develops.

82% either Agree or Strongly Agree

93% either Agree or Strongly Agree
✓ I have met other parents in our neighborhood/community I can ask for help and support. 86% either Agree or Strongly Agree
✓

I have more information on what resources are available for my family.

(NOTE: The survey questions were developed by FCSS Provincial Outcome Measure Trainers to measure the impact of FCSS programs).

B A R O N S - E U R E K A - WA R N E R
Top three reasons parents say they attended your Parent Link Centre:
• Wanted child to try new things/play with other children
• Wanted to meet other parents
• Wanted to be a better parent

56%

of parents reported visiting
once a week.

79%

Most popular services at your Parent Link Centre (most to least used):
1. Early Childhood Development
2. Family Support Service
3. Parent Education Service

TOP 3

of parents reported visiting Parent Link Centres for over a year.
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CELEBRATING 30 YEARS!
In 1988, FCSS and Lethbridge College established an innovative rural Parent Preschool Program (PPP). The purpose of the
PPP is to operate as a travelling preschool program within the rural communities outside of the City of Lethbridge. The
program has three primary partners: FCSS, Lethbridge College, and the Parent Preschool Program of Southwestern Alberta.
Each partner is vital to the operation of the program.

Program Overview

5 communities 10 groups

The Parent Preschool Program offers a barrier free, high-quality early childhood education program for children age 16
months to 5 years, and an informative and educational program for parents and caregivers. It focuses on the development of
the whole child. Each week, different activities are planned to stimulate the children using the “SPICE” recipe: Social, Physical,
Intellectual, Creative, and Emotional. Additionally, parents and caregivers participate in interactive speaker programs that
includes topics such as parenting, personal growth and wellness, relationship issues, child safety, community issues, and
home developing ideas.
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Participant Impact
• Children are offered high-quality early childhood
education experiences through an environment
created by Lethbridge College Early Childhood
Education Program.
• Parents are offered an opportunity to decrease
isolation through friendship and networking,
discuss parenting strategies, and learn through
educational seminars.
• Parent Representatives gain valuable experience as
volunteers on a non-profit Board of Directors.
This collaborative initiative to serve rural Albertans
demonstrates exceptional leadership among partners
to establish an innovative program.

99 parents 164
children
287 programming hours
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COMMUNITY PARTNERSHIPS
“One mother said her 2 year old son is singing at home:
Twinkle, Twinkle, and Jesus Loves me. One day, she heard
him singing the ABC’s for the first time.”
– FCSS Parenting and Family Coach

807 children

FAMILIES LEARNING
TOGETHER (FLT)
READ AND RHYME is a 20-week English and Second

Language (ESL) program is designed for ESL Literacy learners.
Mothers, along with their children, participate in “Read and Rhyme”
together to learn rhymes, sing songs, read a simple children’s story
and create a related craft. This program is in partnership with Taber and
District Community Adult Learning Association (TDCALA) and County of
Lethbridge Community Learning Council.

482
parents/caregivers

“When she first started coming to FLT, one little girl would just cry and cry
during the singing. Her mom said she wouldn’t sing, not even in church,
and she didn’t want to go to Sunday School class because there was
singing. But now after coming to Read & Rhyme for 20 weeks, she sings
along, and is not crying anymore. She’s always happy to come to FLT. She
has learned a lot of songs, and even sings them at home.”
– FCSS Parenting and Family Coach
COMMUNITY
TABER & DISTRICT
COMMUNITY ADULT LEARNING ASSOCIATION
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ONLINE SUPPORT

18,357 views

54,176 viewing minutes

In collaboration with our partners, FCSS has developed video’s in Low German. FCSS and our partners recognize the
importance of reaching all community members with information to enhance the well-being of individuals and families.
These video’s have been helpful to share information with local residents and their families who speak Low German.
Visit www.fcss.ca to find the FCSS YouTube channel.

CLOTHING AND TOY EXCHANGE
This community recycling program event offers families the opportunity
to both share and benefit with other families within the community.

5

6 clothing fests 955
attendees
communities
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2,392

Over
counselling support hours were delivered to
						
individuals in the region.

COUNSELLING PROGRAM

The Counselling Program is designed to work effectively with a wide range of experiences and challenges. For FCSS, these
include (but are not limited to): Grief and loss (eg. death, illness, divorce) Managing Emotions (eg. anger, anxiety, stress, social)
Relationships (eg. intimate partner, sibling, friendship, parent/child) Conflict Resolution Coping Strategies Interpersonal Skills
(eg. self-esteem, communication, personal responsibility & motivation)
FCSS Counsellors provide short-term and goal directed counselling services. Our practice is preventative and follows
approximately 10 goal-directed sessions with a Counsellor. We believe that counselling can be a powerful vehicle for clients to
realize meaningful, lasting change. Counselling holds the promise of taking people beyond where they can go themselves.
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“The effectiveness of this service has been a lifesaving experience for me. That being said in the context of having someone to turn
to at times when there were no other alternatives. This service is extremely important to many people. Personally, I find it imperative
to continue these services, as it simply can and does make a positive impact. It does matter. Saying it makes a difference is an
understatement. Please continue to serve our community!” – Individual

96%

of survey participants agree
that they are better at handling
whatever comes their way.

98%

of survey participants agree that they can rely on FCSS for support and help.
“This has been very helpful in building solid communication practices within our family unit. Thank you!” –Family
“Our Counsellor has given us some really useful coping techniques that seem to be helping us move forward.” – Couple

100%

of survey participants agree that as a result of counselling, they feel
better about their ability to take action towards improving their lives.
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ROOTS OF EMPATHY
Roots of Empathy is an evidence-based classroom program that has shown a significant effect in
reducing levels of aggression among school children by raising social/emotional competence and
increasing empathy. Roots of Empathy, launched in 1996, is currently delivered in 10 countries on
three continents. Barons-Eureka Warner FCSS started offering Roots of Empathy in 2003.
“It is a program developed with a curriculum depending on what grade you go into. The purpose of the program is to give life skills
to children about social competency - and the tool is the baby. To use the baby to develop those skills and learn through the baby
and watch the baby grow,” said Family and Community Support Services’ Parent Program Manager Petra DeBow.
It’s a program that has been highly researched - where a baby is brought into the classroom and the students learn through the
baby, added Stacey Maynes, Parenting and Family Coach at the FCSS Stirling Parent Link Centre. “They learn empathy, they learn
about a baby - how to take care of a baby and they learn their feelings, as they relate to the baby,” she noted.
There are nine different themes throughout the year for this program, according to Maynes. “We come in once a week to talk to the
children. For each theme, there’s a pre-family visit, a family visit, and a post-family visit. The pre and the post, I just go into the classroom without the baby and we teach what the theme is about and then we bring the baby in for that family visit and then we talk
about that visit the next week, with the children.” FCSS currently offers Roots of Empathy in six communities.
For more information contact FCSS at parent.program@fcss.ca.

Barons Eureka Warner FCSS has delivered over
and reached over

250 programs

4000 children since 2003.
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SUPPORTING YOUTH AND FAMILIES
What we do…
Our objective is to provide consistent, year-round,
highly accessible counselling for children, youth and
families. We will work with our clients one to one
or on a group level.

Our goals…
	• To increase the overall quality of life for children, youth
and families.
• To increase the number of strategies and resources
available to children & youth.
	• To increase the availability and consistency of counselling
for children, youth and families.
	• To connect clients to relevant and appropriate alternate
community services.
	•Work collaboratively with Schools and School Divisions
to ensure our program and practices remain relevant and
evidence based.
“ I have learned how to become a better person, through my actions and attitudes.” – Student
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SCHOOL PARTNERSHIPS
In recognition of the growing need for counselling services for children, youth and families
residing in the Taber and Vauxhall areas, FCSS and the Horizon School Division have
partnered to address service gaps and enhance the overall accessibility of psychosocial and
psychoeducational services to children, youth and their families.

Holy Spirit SD  .  .  .  .  .  . 3 schools
Horizon SD .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 4 schools
Palliser SD  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  .  . 4 schools
Westwind SD .  .  .  .  .  .  . 2 schools
Tanie Reid-Walker, FCSS Counsellor
supporting schools in Horizon School
Division

90%

154
program hours
740 students

75% say they enjoyed the FCSS school program.

agree that as a result of the FCSS Program, they feel better at
taking responsibility for their actions even when it is hard.

“ I have learned how to be a better friend, teammate, and student. I will be kind and honest when dealing with others”. – Student
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SUPPORTING SENIORS
BETWEEN FRIENDS

is an intergenerational program that provides an opportunity for
seniors and youth to connect and for youth to understand and
appreciate seniors.
George says…I look forward to the boys from the school
coming each week. I enjoyed sharing my stories with the
boys. We often didn’t get the activity done as we were too
busy talking!
George’s new friends say…My favorite thing about
Between Friends was the activities and the fun we had
with George and my friends. From coming to Between
Friends I learned about the senior’s life stories and how
lucky we are. Something I discovered I was good at that I
didn’t know before is that I can interact with older people
and I enjoy hearing their stories.

“I learned that your friends don’t just have to be people the same age as you” – Student
“My favorite thing about Between Friends was getting to know all the seniors and growing connections with them!” – Student
“My favorite thing about Between Friends was meeting new friends and seeing friends from the past years.
I look forward to seeing my friends every week, having fun, playing new games and activities”. – Senior
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Over

200

attendees

“The whole day was wonderful.”
– Participant

“What a fabulous conference I don’t think I have
laughed that much for years. Truly loved everything.
GREAT JOB !!!!” – Participant

FCSS RURAL SENIORS CONFERENCES
The FCSS Rural Seniors Conferences provides seniors and caregivers with:
• Presentations on health, medical, housing, financial and aging.
• Mini resource fair with local support services.
• Local entertainment, socializing, great food and door prizes.
“The whole day was wonderful. Entertainment wonderful.” – Participant
“Been to many senior conferences. This was one of the best!” – Participant

PHOTO BY COLE PARKINSON

Keynote speaker, Gordon Colledge, garnered
laughs throughout his entire speech at the Taber
Legion which concured with Seniors Week 2018.
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VOLUNTEERS
“The opportunity to volunteer with Family and Community Support
Services (Penny) has been a rewarding experience for me. I help Penny
prepare for the arrival and activities for children from ages of 0-5. I
really enjoy working with the children and I have learned lots. Every
child is a little bit different, some like activities more than others and I
like the challenge of trying to figure them out. It is helpful to me too. I
get credits toward my high school graduation! I would recommend this
to other students my age in the future too!” – Volunteer

COMMUNITY VOLUNTEER INCOME TAX PROGRAM (CVITP)
The Community Volunteer Income Tax Program is offered though the
Canadian Revenue Agency of Canada. The CVITP works in the community with
organizations to host free tax preparation clinics and arranges for volunteers
to complete income tax and benefit returns for eligible individuals.

$833K

113

4

FCSS volunteers screened and trained
by the Canada Revenue Agency

income tax returns completed
benefits received by eligible individuals

128

volunteer
hours
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1634

volunteer hours

239 FCSS volunteers

WHY I VOLUNTEER!
“I chose to volunteer at the centre with Penny because I thought it was going to be a great
way to extend my knowledge in the field of childhood education. I enjoy working there. It
is getting to watch the parents interact with their children more and more and not on their
devices and seeing the children laugh and play in person with someone else. I work every
Tuesday for about 3.5 hours. I have learned that even our small towns need the care and
advice that Penny brings to them and how hard it is to be a parent living in such a small
town. I do plan on going into the field of childhood education because I love how active
children keep me, the smiles, the enjoyment they bring from within is astounding, and being
able to help when someone needs it is the greatest feeling of them all.” – Volunteer

Alorah, Peyton and Penny (FCSS staff )

“The partnership between Warner School and FCSS has been a tremendously positive experience for our students. They are able to learn
about the benefits of volunteering and giving back in their own community, while also gaining knowledge and experience about working
with young children. Each of the students involved have reported enjoying the activities that they are involved in and that they look forward
to their time each week. The potential for future involvement in the program will provide our students with the opportunity to volunteer,
gain experience working with young children, and nurture their own passions. Without Penny Pittman’s involvement and promotion of this
opportunity for partnership, our students would have missed out. She has been flexible and open to supporting our students through the
process. We are grateful for the opportunity to partner with FCSS!” – Principal LeGrandeur
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